
MINUTES

CITY OF CHEROKEE VILLAGE, ARKANSAS

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
6: 30 P. M., THURSDAY, January 16, 2014

CHEROKEE VILLAGE CITY HALL

meetings are video recorded)

Mayor Lloyd Hefley called the regular meeting of the City Council to order at 6:30 p. m.
on, January 16, 2014.  He led the Pledge of Allegiance followed by a moment of silent
prayer.

Roll was called by Clerk Lana Hamilton.   Present were Jerry Adams, Les Covington,
Chuck McMahon, Verna Mae Newman, Linda O' Neal, Pamela Rowland, Tom Thone,

Mayor Hefley and City Attorney Jon Abele; Bill Circle was absent.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Newman moved to add the January 23, Fairfield Bay
meeting at 1 p. m.  under New Business.   Newman moved to approve the amended

agenda, seconded by Rowland and passed unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS:  ( limit 3 minutes per person)

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  Newman moved to approve the December 19, 2013

council minutes, seconded by Covington and passed unanimously.

CORRESPONDENCE:   Clerk Hamilton read an e- mail regarding a bad weather plan
from Barbara Blough with her suggestions for the Street Department.

MAYOR' S REPORT:  Mayor Lloyd Hefley announced there would be a Budget Meeting
on January 22, 2014 at 1: 00 p. m.

CLERK' S REPORT:

1  —  Information on upcoming Legislative Audit  —  Clerk Hamilton advised council

Legislative Audit would be auditing the past two years beginning at the end of January.

2 — Fire Fund Reserve Account — Clerk Hamilton spoke about SID' s check to the Fire
Dept. and stated she had not deposited the

3rd/

4th Quarter Fire Fund Reserve check

and requested permission from council to not deposit the check into the Reserve Fund.

Covington moved to approve not depositing the Reserve Fund check,  seconded by
Newman and passed unanimously.

FINANCIAL REPORT:   Newman moved to approve the financials for audit, seconded

by Adams and passed unanimously.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:

1



FIRE:  ( report on file)

POLICE:  ( report on file)— Thone inquired about the 8 new computers purchased thru
a grant for the Police Dept;  Thone asked what would happen to the used towers
because of security issues.   Chief Crook stated they were not disposing of the old
computers without destroying the hard drives.

ANIMAL CONTROL:  ( report on file)

STREET:  ( report on file) —Adams asked the Street Dept. to address the concerns in

the e- mail.  Carmen Evance stated there was a sign at top of Pontiac and stated Roads
Streets can' t always get to the main roads first.  Evance also stated they are currently

down one driver due to health issues.  McMahon asked if there is a plan during storms;
Evance stated there is a plan for who, when, and where.

COMMUNITY SERVICE:  ( report on file)

DISTRICT COURT:  ( report on file)

PLANNING & ZONING

Thone inquired about Planning &  Promotion monies given to various functions and

asked if they provided a report on how the monies were spent; Bickle stated Planning &
Zoning approves the requests by roll call vote and a report isn' t given unless requested.
Clerk Hamilton stated everyone has submitted a report except Winterfest;  Hamilton

stated they have 45 days to submit a report.

Thone asked if Planning & Promotion would be continuing; Mayor Hefley stated there
would be a meeting regarding combining the Planning & Promotion Committee and the

A&P Commission.

Mayor Hefley stated two new members had been appointed at the January
6th

Planning
Zoning meeting;  George Harris'  term will end December 31,  2016 and Douglas

McArthur's term will end December 31, 2014.  Newman moved to accept the members,

seconded by Adams.

PERMIT COMPARISONS:  ( report on file)

CODE ENFORCEMENT:  ( report on file)

RESTORATION:  Thone stated just under $10,000 was spent on restoration for roll off

containers, etc.   Thone stated the Street Dept. was also involved in the clean ups;

Bickle stated they were involved in 2 of the clean ups and stated he had approved
payment to them.  Clerk Hamilton stated she was awaiting a $ 5,000 insurance check to

pay Streets the balance due them.  Bickle stated liens were being placed on 2 pieces of
property that had been cleaned up and the properties would be given away by the P& P
as a promotional tool and the City would receive tax income from these.

Cr

2



Bickle reported the surveyor has been asked to notify homeowners of their survey
results and stated 60 of the 80 surveys have been completed.

A & P COMMISSION REPORT:  Pat Clary gave a packet to council and discussed the
Discover Cherokee Village website and the website development task force.   Clary
stated the Hardy and Mammoth Spring A&Ps were working with the City of Cherokee
Village's A&P,  regionally,  as Discover Spring River.   Clary stated Cherokee Village
would be included in the 2014 Arkansas Tour Guide along with Hardy.  Clary stated the
commission was already working on Cherokee Village's

60th

birthday celebration.  Clary
stated the A&P would be replacing Doug Driesel who had resigned.   Clary stated the
A&P Commission would be asking the City for the monies that would have previously
gone to the Planning & Promotion Committee in the 2014 budget; Thone asked if that
was $25,000 and Clary stated it was.

COMMITTEES:

PERSONNEL:

SAFETY:

WEBSITE & GRANT:  McMahon stated the committee was looking for someone who
has experience writing grants to attend meetings.    McMahon stated the committee

meets at 9:30 a. m. on the
1st

Tuesday of every month.  Pat Clary offered to review any
grants before being submitted.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:

1 —  Bob Bickle to discuss City Sales Tax for the new liquor store opening in Cherokee
Village — Bickle stated he met with a liquor store owner who had planned on opening a
store in Williford, AR, but has since purchased a building in Cherokee Village.   Bickle

stated he offered a 1% sales tax break for 24 months pending approval by council.  City
Attorney, Jon Abele, stated the City can do economic development.  Newman stated the

tax break would have to be cleared with the Department of Finance.  Rowland stated we

need to look into the legalities and explore other options.  Mayor Hefley stated this item
should be brought up under Old Business next month.  Clerk Hamilton stated her office

has contacted the Department of Finance regarding this matter.

Adams encouraged everyone to shop at Freds so the City of Cherokee Village can
benefit from the sales tax.

2 — Council to set time and days for City Council meetings — Mayor Hefley stated
council meetings are currently held on the

3rd

Thursday of each month at 6:30 p.m. and
asked council if they would like to continue with this schedule in 2014.   Covington

Co

3



moved to approve the time and days for the 2014 meetings, seconded by Newman and
Cpassed unanimously.

3 —  Resolution 2014-01 — A resolution approving the 2014 annual operating budget for
the City of Cherokee Village —  Clerk Hamilton read Resolution 2014-01;  Newman
moved to accept the resolution.   Thone moved to approve the 2013 budget until the
2014 budget is approved no later than March 1, 2014, seconded by Covington.   After

lengthy discussion, a roll call vote was taken; there were 7 yeas, passing Resolution
2014-01 unanimously.

4 — Fairfield Bay Business Meeting — Newman stated there was a meeting on January
23rd

of the cities' Aldermen and Mayors from Horseshoe Bend, Cherokee Village and
Fairfield Bay; Newman stated she and Mayor Hefley would be attending.     Newman

stated she would like to see all the Aldermen from Cherokee Village attend and the

previous meetings had good attendance and representation by the other cities.

COMMENTS OF CITY RELATED ITEMS:  ( limit 3 minutes per person)

Peter Martin asked what ordinance or resolution gave Planning  &  Promotion the

authority to give money away; Clerk Hamilton stated $ 10,000 had been budgeted for

Planning & Promotion.  Martin stated the City must have a contract with the entity prior
to giving out the money.  Martin asked how much money was coming into the City with
the A&P Commission; Martin stated this information was to be made public.   Martin

Cstated it was possible to rebate the liquor store owner thru economic development in
lieu of giving a tax break.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

ADJOURNMENT:   Newman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:40 p. m., seconded by
McMahon and passed unanimously.

NOTE:   Minutes are prepared by Kathi Blackwell, Assistant to Clerk/Treasurer Lana
Hamilton (with Hamilton' s approval)

DATE:    a`   

APPROVED:

loyd He ey, Mayor

ATTEST 1

i

i YLA-)--- 117) 
Lana Hamilton, City Clerk/Treasurer

4


